立法會 Legislative Council

Ref : CB2/PL/CA <u>LC Paper No. CB(2)1376/13-14</u>

(These minutes have been seen

by the Administration)

Panel on Constitutional Affairs

Minutes of special meeting held on Saturday, 11 January 2014, at 9:00 am in Conference Room 1 of the Legislative Council Complex

Members present

: Hon TAM Yiu-chung, GBS, JP (Chairman)

Hon Paul TSE Wai-chun, JP (Deputy Chairman)

Hon Albert HO Chun-yan Hon LEE Cheuk-yan

Hon Emily LAU Wai-hing, JP

Hon Frederick FUNG Kin-kee, SBS, JP Hon Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung, GBS, JP Hon WONG Ting-kwong, SBS, JP Hon Ronny TONG Ka-wah, SC

Hon Cyd HO Sau-lan

Hon Starry LEE Wai-king, JP Hon CHAN Kin-por, BBS, JP

Dr Hon Priscilla LEUNG Mei-fun, SBS, JP

Hon WONG Kwok-kin, BBS Hon IP Kwok-him, GBS, JP

Hon Mrs Regina IP LAU Suk-yee, GBS, JP

Hon Alan LEONG Kah-kit, SC

Hon LEUNG Kwok-hung

Hon WONG Yuk-man

Hon Michael TIEN Puk-sun, BBS, JP Hon James TIEN Pei-chun, GBS, JP

Hon NG Leung-sing, SBS, JP

Hon YIU Si-wing

Hon Gary FAN Kwok-wai

Hon MA Fung-kwok, SBS, JP

Hon Charles Peter MOK

Hon CHAN Chi-chuen

Dr Hon Kenneth CHAN Ka-lok Hon CHAN Yuen-han, SBS, JP

Hon Dennis KWOK

Hon IP Kin-yuen

Hon Martin LIAO Cheung-kong, JP Dr Hon CHIANG Lai-wan, JP Hon CHUNG Kwok-pan

Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen

Member attending

: Hon James TO Kun-sun

Members absent

: Dr Hon LAU Wong-fat, GBM, GBS, JP

Dr Hon LAM Tai-fai, SBS, JP Hon Steven HO Chun-yin

Hon Alice MAK Mei-kuen, JP

Hon Christopher CHEUNG Wah-fung, JP

Hon SIN Chung-kai, SBS, JP Dr Hon Helena WONG Pik-wan

Public Officer attending

Public Officers: <u>Sessions One to Four</u>

Mr Raymond TAM Chi-yuen

Secretary for Constitutional and Mainland Affairs

Mr Freely CHENG Kei

Principal Assistant Secretary for Constitutional and Mainland

Affairs

Mr Andrew NGAN Man-kit

Assistant Secretary for Constitutional and Mainland Affairs

<u>Sessions Five to Eight</u>

Mr Raymond TAM Chi-yuen

Secretary for Constitutional and Mainland Affairs

Mr Freely CHENG Kei

Principal Assistant Secretary for Constitutional and Mainland Affairs

Mr Sunny PAU Pak-sun

Assistant Secretary for Constitutional and Mainland Affairs

Attendance by : <u>Session One</u> invitation

Mr LAM Siu-pan

Hong Kong Professional Teachers' Union

Mr CHEUNG Yui-fai Executive Committee Member

Mr KWOK Chung-man

Civic Party

Mr Peter YU Committee Member, NTW Branch

Justice and Peace Commission of the Hong Kong Catholic Diocese

Mr Eddie CHAN Shu-fai

Civil Human Rights Front

Mr Johnson YEUNG Ching-yin Convener

Mr LEUNG Chi-ming

協助飯團入閘大聯盟

Mr CHIN Wai-lok Chairman

Hong Kong Federation of Students

Mr Eddie CHAN Shu-fai Secretary General

Students' Union of Hong Kong University of Science and Technology

Mr TSE Tsz-chung Vice-President

- 4 -

Shue Yan SUC

Mr NG Chung-tat Ex-officio Member

Mr Francis CHAN

Mr TAM Kwok-sun

Mr NG Su-san

Session Two

Mr WONG Yuk-ming

Youthinfinity

Mr LAU Fung-lee Secretary General

The Association of Hong Kong Health Care Professionals

Miss Janet HUI Po-chun Treasurer

Hong Kong Association for Democracy and People's Livelihood

Mr LEUNG Yau-fong Central Standing Committee Member

Dr Benjamin LAU Shun-tung

Mr CHAN Shui-on

Mr CHAN Chee-chuen

Sham Shui Po Residents Association

Mr LAU Kin-shing
Executive of District Services Office

- 5 -

Hong Kong Ching Fai Association Limited

Mr CHAN Kwok-wai Vice President

Mr Jonathan FONG

Mr PANG Yuen-ching

Mr YIP Man-chung

Mr LIN Chun-ming

Mr CHAN Hiu-chun

Mr KWAN Cheuk-kui

Mr HOU Chun-kau

Co-opted member

Community Affairs Committee, Sham Shui Po District Council

Property Agencies Association

Mr KWOK Tak-leung Chairman

Mr YUEN Chung-man

Mid-Levels Community Development Association

Mr TSUI King-sing Secretary General

Session Three

Kowloon Federation of Associations

Ms WONG Wai-ching President

Democratic Alliance for the Betterment and Progress of Hong Kong

Mr Horace CHEUNG Vice-President

Institute of Accountants Exchange

Mr Derek POON Kwok-ching Representative

Accounting Development Foundation Limited

Mr Edwin YEUNG Chairman of Executive Committee

Mr SIN Chi-ming

Mr WU Kam-chau

Mr HUI Hoi-tik

Mr Matthew SIN

Mr LEE Kwok-wan

Mr Frank PAK

Mr Johnny YU

The Y. Elites Association

Mr Clarence LEUNG Chairman

All-China Women's Federation Hong Kong Delegates Association

Ms YEUNG Chi-hong President

Lok Fu Residents' Affairs Association

Mr Andie CHAN Wai-kwan Chairman

King Fu District Residents' Advancement Association

Mr WONG Chun-kin Chairman

- 7 -

Dr Stephen LI Chun-yue

HK Political Economic and Cultural Society

Mr TSE Wai-mo Founding President

Mr CHAN Kuen-hong

Session Four

Service Industry General Union

Mr TONG Kang-yiu Chairman

Internet Professional Association

Mr Witman HUNG President

The Youth Association of Hong Kong Central and Western District

Mr David NG Vice-Chairman

China Universities Alumni (HK) Association

Mr Patrick TSE Deputy President

Love China Hong Kong Alliance of Youth Cultural Societies

Miss Jenny CHAN Founding Vice Chairman

The Hong Kong Student Development Committee

Miss TSE Hiu-hung President

Mr YIM Chi-fung

Hong Kong Information Technology Joint Council

Professor WONG Kam-fai President

Miss Vivian SHEK

Mr TEO Kong-lap

C.B.N. Cares

Mr WONG King-yip Member

Gamer Power

Mr TSOI Man-lung CEO

Civic Passion

Mr WONG Yung-tat Mastermind

Malade Alliance for the Betterment and Progress of Hong Kong

Mr MA Kai-chung

Girl's Hong Kong Caring Hotline

Miss Joey TSANG

Mr WONG Chiu-wa

League in Defense of HK Freedoms

Mr HON Lin-shan Spokesman

Students' Union of the University of Hong Kong

Mr Alex CHOW Yong-kang Vice-President (External)

Mr FU Ka-ho

The Association of Experts for Modernization Ltd

Ms Elizabeth TSE WONG Siu-yin Treasurer

Hong Kong Strategy

Mr David FONG Chairman

Session Five

Cross-Strait Peaceful Development Federation

Mr NG Tin-chi President

Government Architectural Services Department Employees Association

Mr KWOK Wan-ling Chairman

Mr Matthew CHUNG Ho-ming

Mr TSANG Yiu-hin

Hong Kong Federation of Guangxi Clansmen Association Limited

Ms MUNG Mei-ling President

Federation of HK Guangxi Community Organization Ltd

Mr Raymond CHU Lop-fu Executive President

Ching Chung Taoist Association of Hong Kong Ltd

Mr IP Cheung-ching Vice Chairman

Young DAB

Mr Holden CHOW Chairman

Mr KWONG Sing-yu

Mr WONG Chi-kin

Mr YAN Kin-yi, Raphael

Mr CHAN Kwong-shik

Mr CHAN King-wai

Mr LEE Ching-hang

Mr LEUNG Ip-chun

Hong Kong New Territories Commercial & Industrial General Association Limited (Yuen Long Branch)

Mr WAI Wing-lam Vice-Chairperson

Mr LOUIE Wah-yuck

Mr LAM Shun-kit

<u>Defend Hong Kong Campaign</u>

Mr PO Chun-chung

Hong Kong CPPCC (Provincial) Members Association Ltd.

Mr WONG Wa-hong Secretary General

Hong Kong Youth Development Society

Mr MUK Ka-chun Vice-Chairman

- 11 -

Mr LEUNG Wah

Mr CHIN Chi-yung

Mr LAI Wing-ming

Session Six

Neighbourhood and Worker's Service Centre

Mr WONG Yun-tat Representative of Organization

Kwai Chung Community Work Union

Ms SZETO Mei-mei Representative of Concern Group

Kwai Chung Estate Elderly Rights Concern Group

Mr TSANG Hoi-pang Representative of Concern Group

Kwai Chung Estate Grassroots Political Concern Group

Miss Vincci WONG Representative of Concern Group

Kwai Chung Estate Labour Rights Concern Group

Mr LEUNG Kam-wai Representative of Concern Group

Kwai Fong Worker Union

Miss CHAN Hoi-fung, Flora Representative of Concern Group

Eastern District Worker Union

Mr AU Lap-hang Representative of Concern Group

Mr AU YEUNG Kwong-wing

Mr LAM Mau-fung

Mr LAI Tak-keung

Hong Kong Union of Chinese Workers in Western Style Employment

Mr WONG Pak-shing Chairman

Miss CHEUNG Yuet-yung

Mr KAN Chi-chung

The Association of Hong Kong Professionals

Dr Eugene CHAN Chairman

China Universities Alumni (HK) Association - Engineer Division

Mr WOO Han-yu Vice-Chairman

The Nam An (Hong Kong) Association Ltd.

Mr Duncan TAI Hung-yu Deputy Secretary

Savantas

Mr David WONG Chor-fung
Director of Community Development

Mr Marcus TSE Tsz-kei

Member of Eastern District Council (Tai Koo Shing East)

Mr WONG Cheuk-kin

Member of Yuen Long District Council (Chung Pak)

Ms Alice WONG Man-hing

Mr Joey LEE Man-lung

Member of Eastern District Council (Tin Hau)

Session Seven

Virtue Dynamics

劉轉好女士

Hong Kong China Chamber of Commerce

Mr LEUNG Kai-lam President

New Home Association

Ms Janus LAU Yuen-yee Executive Officer

Mr Tony LEUNG Ka-tung

Sun Yat-Sen University United Alumni Association (Hong Kong)

Mr LUN Chi-yim Honorary President

Mr Jeffrey PONG Chiu-fai
Member of Wan Chai District Council

Ms KWOK Yee-wah

Mr TSOI Hing-fa

Hong Kong Federation of Hainan Community Organisations Limited

Ms Carol LO Vice Treasurer

Ms LEE LUK Kwan-yee

Central and Western Development Concern Association

Mr SZE Fok-yun Assistant Convener

C&W Mid-levels Owners' Association

Mr LEE Sai-cheung Vice-Chairman

HK Public Light Bus Owner & Driver Association

Mr LAI Ming-hung Secretary General

Hong Kong All Youth Alliance

Ms Phoebe WONG President

Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations Limited

Mr HUNG Chi-kit

Hong Kong United Youth Association Ltd

Mr Kenneth FOK Chairman

Mr Eric YEUNG

Ms Jaclyn NGAN

Mr Stanley CHOI

Wanchai Community Association

Mr NG Tai-kwong External Deputy Coordinator

Mr Barry WONG

Institute of Social Service Development

Miss LO Po-yee Executive Officer

Mr CHAN Chit-kwai, BBS, JP

Member of Central and Western District Council

Mr Fanko WAN Cho-keung

Session Eight

Mr Jonathan HO Kai-ming
Member of Kwun Tong District Council

Mr Lemon FOK

Livelihood Concern Group

Mr AU YEUNG Tung

Labour Party

Mr CHENG Sze-lut Vice-Chairperson

Mr Louis CHENG

New Power for Student Right

Mr MOK Hiu-fung Representative

64.25 Group

Mr AU YEUNG Tung Member

Hong Kong Electrical & Engineering Professional Employees Association

Mr WONG Kam-fai Chairman

Mr LAM Sik-kin

League of Social Democrats

Mr Avery NG Man-yuen Vice-chairman

Hong Kong Youth Development Council

Mr PANG Tsz-hin Student member

Wofoo Infinity Network

Mr HO Ting-hong

Wofoo Youth Network

Miss TSANG Ho-kwan Student member

Youth Ambassador Union of the Basic Law

Mr TSANG Put-long
Public Relations and Communication Officer

Popular Nominations Struggle Committee

Mr Raphael WONG Ho-ming Chairman

Ms Cherry LEE Ka-shun

Hong Kong Registered Chinese Medicine Practitioners Association Ltd

Mr CHAN Wing-kwong Chairman

Miss WONG Man-ching

Clerk in attendance

: Ms Joanne MAK

Chief Council Secretary (2) 3

Staff in attendance

: Mr Kelvin LEE

Assistant Legal Adviser 1

Miss Cindy HO

Senior Council Secretary (2) 3

Ms Wendy LO Council Secretary (2) 3

Mrs Fonny TSANG Legislative Assistant (2) 3

Action

I. Consultation Document on Methods for Selecting the Chief Executive in 2017 and for Forming the Legislative Council in 2016 [LC Paper No. CB(2)628/13-14(01)]

The Panel received views on the Consultation Document on Methods for Selecting the Chief Executive ("CE") in 2017 and for Forming the Legislative Council ("LegCo") in 2016 ("Consultation Document") from a total of 159 deputations/individuals. A record of the 159 deputations /individuals and the submissions received is in **Appendix**.

Discussion

Method for selecting CE in 2017

- 2. <u>Dr Priscilla LEUNG</u> emphasized the need to discuss the methods for selecting CE in 2017 and for forming LegCo in 2016 on the basis of the legal framework constituted by the Basic Law ("BL") and the relevant Interpretation and Decisions of the Standing Committee of the National People's Congress ("NPCSC"). She invited views from the deputations on the composition of the Nominating Committee ("NC") that would be formed to nominate CE candidates. <u>Mr KWOK Tak-leung</u> of Property Agencies Association said that the real estate agents sector should be represented on NC. He considered that the public would no longer consider that the election of CE in 2017 was a small circle election, if the membership and composition of NC would be large and broad enough to represent adequately the views of various sectors of the community.
- 3. <u>Ms Emily LAU</u> asked the deputations which were supportive of capping the number of CE candidates how universal and equal suffrage could be achieved if a screening mechanism was put in place in the nomination procedures of CE to screen out certain candidates.
- 4. <u>Mr HOU Chun-kau</u>, co-opted member of the Community Affairs Committee of Sham Shui Po District Council, responded that as the CE-elect

had to be appointed by the Central People's Government ("CPG"), the CE-elect should be one who was trusted by CPG to be able to perform his/her official duties. <u>Mr YEUN Chung-man</u> was concerned that if the number of CE candidates was not restricted, a large number of candidates might turn up to run for the election and thereby complicated the procedures of the election.

- 5. Mr CHAN Chi-chuen said that he did not subscribe to the view that too many CE candidates running for the 2017 CE election would complicate the electoral procedures. He queried whether the number of candidates for District Council elections and LegCo elections should also be capped. Mr CHAN Chit-kwai, Central and Western District Council member, said that as a nomination threshold was needed to be set and there would be a limit to the membership size of NC, he envisaged that NC could only nominate about five CE candidates.
- 6. <u>Mr LEE Cheuk-yan</u> considered that if the power to nominate CE candidates was only vested in NC, candidates from political parties with dissenting views would be screened out in the nomination procedures.
- 7. Referring to BL 39 where it was stated that "The provisions of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights ("ICCPR"), the International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights, and international labour conventions as applied to Hong Kong shall remain in force and shall be implemented through the laws of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.....", Mr Frederick FUNG stressed that when formulating proposals on the electoral reform, it had to be ensured that the rights to make nomination, to stand for election and to vote conformed to the principles of universal and equal suffrage stipulated in Article 25 of ICCPR. Mr Frederick FUNG sought the views of deputations on how to define behaviours that would be regarded as acting against the Central Authorities. Mr CHAN Kuen-hong considered that a person whose acts contravened BL and the law should not be considered as a suitable CE candidate.
- 8. <u>Ms Emily LAU</u> said that there was no provision in BL imposing the restriction that one who did not "love the country and Hong Kong" could not stand for the CE election. She sought the views of deputations on this additional restriction as mentioned by Mainland officials. <u>Mr SIN Chi-ming</u> responded that he did not see any problem with the restriction. He added that the number of CE candidates should also be restricted by legal means.

- 9. Mr HON Lin-shan of League in Defense of HK Freedoms emphasized that apart from safeguarding the right to vote and the right to stand for election as stipulated in BL 26, Hong Kong people should also have the right to be nominated in an election.
- 10. <u>Ms CHAN Yuen-han</u> considered that all parties should strive to forge a consensus on the electoral reform. She invited the deputations to give views on how to forge consensus to roll forward constitutional development in Hong Kong. <u>Mr WONG Yung-tat</u> of Civic Passion strongly queried the legal basis of the question 'how could the "democratic procedures" reflect the requirement of "organizational nomination?" which was asked in the Consultation Document, as there was no mention of "organizational nomination" in BL. He expressed a strong view that it was unconstitutional for the HKSAR Government to do so.
- 11. <u>Secretary for Constitutional and Mainland Affairs</u> ("SCMA") explained that some footnotes in the Consultation Document were used to set out the viewpoints of some Mainland legal experts, as well as some recent views and suggestions raised by the public on various issues covered by the Consultation Document. He explained that these footnotes only sought to provide supplementary information for reference. He added that different views on "democratic procedures" referred to in BL 45 were also elaborated in footnote 11 of the Consultation Document.
- 12. On the concept of "organizational nomination", <u>SCMA</u> said that it was elaborated in footnotes 9 and 10 in the Consultation Document. He explained that BL 45 specified that NC was the body empowered to nominate CE candidates, as distinct from the current model of election by the Election Committee ("EC") whereby individual members of EC could jointly nominate candidates. The Administration considered it necessary to highlight this difference in the nomination approach between NC and EC in the Consultation Document. Relevant questions were also included in the Consultation Document to seek public views on the nomination procedures. <u>SCMA</u> also highlighted that BL 45 provided that "The ultimate aim is the selection of the Chief Executive by universal suffrage upon nomination by a broadly representative nominating committee in accordance with democratic procedures".
- 13. <u>Ms Starry LEE</u> expressed concurrence with the Administration that the methods for selecting CE in 2017 and for forming LegCo in 2016 should

be discussed on the basis of the legal framework constituted by the relevant provisions in BL and the relevant Interpretation and Decisions of NPCSC. Ms LEE considered that the future proposals on the electoral reform to be put forward to LegCo should be able to secure the support of the Hong Kong people, LegCo Members and the Central Authorities. In response to the criticism of some deputations about the inclusion of the remarks by Mainland officials in the Consultation Document, Ms LEE considered that this arrangement was acceptable as it would facilitate the public to understand the viewpoints of the Mainland officials.

- 14. <u>Ms Starry LEE</u> sought deputations' views on how the future NC should be formed to enhance its representativeness. <u>Mr WONG Wa-hong</u> of Hong Kong CPPCC (Provincial) Members Association Ltd suggested that the membership size of NC should be 1 400, and the number of seats for each of the four sectors should be 350 and representatives of his organization should be included in NC as well. <u>Mr CHAN Kwong-shik</u> considered that NC should be formed in accordance with the principle of balanced participation and it should fulfil the requirement of being "broadly representative" as stipulated in BL in order to prevent Hong Kong from moving towards "welfarism".
- 15. <u>Ms Emily LAU</u> said that Hong Kong people also wanted to nominate candidates for the 2017 election or to have the right to elect members of NC. However, many Hong Kong people were concerned whether the composition of NC had to be similar to EC. She pointed out that EC, which was claimed to have enabled balanced participation of different strata and sectors, was however, widely criticized for being dominated by a small circle. She considered that the Central Authorities should trust Hong Kong people and respect their aspirations for genuine universal suffrage.
- 16. Mr PO Chun-chung of Defend Hong Kong Campaign opined that different electoral systems were adopted in overseas jurisdictions. He considered that the "one-person-one-vote" system might not genuinely reflect the contributions of different sectors to the society. He believed that the adoption of the principle of balanced participation could ensure that the interests of different sectors were represented in an election.
- 17. <u>Mrs Regina IP</u> said that in democratic countries such as the United States, the United Kingdom and France, the relevant nomination procedures were not by way of "civic nomination". <u>Mr WONG Yun-tat</u> of Neighbourhood and Worker's Service Centre responded that "civic

nomination" would provide an avenue for the general public to nominate CE candidates and enable any aspirant to run for the CE election provided that he/she was able to obtain the required number of nominations of registered voters in Hong Kong. While he also supported the election of NC members through universal suffrage, he considered that nomination of CE candidates through "civic nomination" was a better way of enabling voters to have a genuine choice.

- 18. Ms Emily LAU sought the views of deputations on how to test whether a CE candidate "loves the country and Hong Kong" and the arrangements that should be adopted to cap the number of CE candidates. Mr WONG Pak-shing of Hong Kong Union of Chinese Workers in Western Style Employment said that the conduct of a CE candidate would be judged by the public. For example, persons who did not support BL and the Constitution of the People's Republic of China would not meet the requirement of "loving the country and Hong Kong". He agreed that candidates should be nominated by NC as stipulated in BL. Mr LEUNG Kai-lam of Hong Kong China Chamber of Commerce considered that the words and deeds of a CE candidate would be taken into account by NC in the nomination process. Ms KWOK Yee-wah expressed similar views and supported that only NC had the power to nominate CE candidates.
- 19. <u>Ms Starry LEE</u> said that under BL 45, the power to nominate CE candidates was vested in NC only. She considered that the substantive power of NC to nominate candidates would be undermined if candidates were nominated through "civic nomination". She sought the views of deputations on the ways of enhancing the democratic element of NC.
- 20. Mr AU Lap-hang of Eastern District Worker Union expressed disagreement with some deputations that the implementation of universal suffrage should be conducted strictly in accordance with BL. He considered that BL should be amended to reflect the actual situation of Hong Kong and respond to the aspirations of Hong Kong people for democracy. Mr LEUNG Kwok-hung agreed that BL should be amended to empower Hong Kong people to nominate CE candidates in order to achieve universal and equal suffrage. Mr Duncan TAI Hung-yu of the Nam An (Hong Kong) Association Ltd. considered that the community should discuss the electoral reform within the legal framework of BL in order to achieve universal suffrage.
- 21. <u>SCMA</u> stressed that relevant provisions in BL, together with relevant Interpretation and Decisions of NPCSC, constituted the legal framework for

implementing universal suffrage in Hong Kong. He said that the view made by some deputations that the Central Authorities might consider reviewing the method for selecting CE in the future after two to three CE elections by universal suffrage had been held was noted.

- 22. <u>Miss TSANG Ho-kwun</u> of Wofoo Youth Network said that she was worried that it would be a waste of time and effort in conducting this public consultation exercise if the community insisted on "civic nomination". <u>Mr LAM Sik-kin</u> considered that the nomination procedures to be drawn up should be aimed to ensure that suitable persons with high caliber would be able to secure adequate nominations to run for the 2017 CE election.
- 23. Mr CHAN Chi-chuen invited the views of deputations on the suggestion that to avoid having a large number of candidates turning up for the 2017 CE election, a CE candidate had to pay a fine or had the election deposit forfeited if he/she failed to obtain a certain percentage of the valid Mr Avery NG Man-yuen of League of Social votes in the election. Democrats considered that the above suggestion would not help ensure that only candidates who were competent could run for the election. suggested that there should be two rounds of voting in the 2017 CE election. The two candidates obtaining the highest number of votes could enter into the second round of voting. A candidate would be elected as CE only if he/she had obtained more than half of the valid votes. SCMA advised that in the light of overseas experience, the requirement of a high election deposit to be paid by candidates of an election might constitute an unreasonable constraint to their right to stand for election.
- 24. Mr Avery NG Man-yuen asked whether the Administration would make reference to the results of the survey conducted by the University of Hong Kong in December 2013, according to which about 66% of respondents supported "civic nomination". He also asked whether the new form of "organizational nomination" would constitute a breach of Article 25 of ICCPR. SCMA said that the Administration would make reference to the findings of surveys conducted by academic institutions in formulating policies. He reiterated that CE should be elected by universal suffrage upon nomination by a broadly representative NC as stipulated in BL 45. The Administration welcomed any views and suggestions on how NC should be formed to meet the requirement of "broadly representative".
- 25. Mr Raphael WONG Ho-ming of Popular Nominations Struggle Committee asked whether any committees similar to NC had been set up in

other jurisdictions to nominate candidates and whether the adoption of "civic nomination" would contravene BL. <u>SCMA</u> said that different nomination systems were adopted in overseas jurisdictions in accordance with the actual situation of the places concerned. He explained that it would be inappropriate for him to comment on any specific proposal at the present stage in order to allow room for discussion in the community. He added that the aim of this first round of public consultation was to gather views from different sectors of the community.

Method for forming LegCo in 2016

- 26. Mr LEE Cheuk-yan sought the views of deputations on the way forward of the functional constituencies ("FC") system and on the suggestion of abolishing FCs seats. Mr KWOK Tak-leung responded that the Property Agencies Association considered that the constitutional reform should be taken forward in accordance with the principle of gradual and orderly progress, and FC seats of LegCo should be retained at this stage to balance the interests of different sectors of the community. Mr Barry WONG expressed dissatisfaction that under the existing FC system, many frontline staff members of the social welfare field (e.g. health workers and welfare workers) were not eligible to register as voters in the sector. He considered that the relevant arrangement should be reviewed to enlarge the electorate base of the social welfare sector.
- 27. Pointing out that even deputations representing some FCs requested that the electorate base of their sectors be enlarged, Mr LEUNG Kwok-hung considered that to resolve the conflicts in the society, Hong Kong people should be allowed to nominate CE candidates.
- 28. <u>SCMA</u> said that the Administration noted the suggestions of some deputations that the electorate base of certain FCs (e.g. Social Welfare FC and the Transport FC) should be enlarged and some new subsectors should be added to the future NC (e.g. women and youth) to enhance its representativeness. He considered that the criteria of voter registration in the relevant sectors should be kept transparent to ensure that elections were conducted in an open and fair manner, and welcomed further proposals in this regard.
- 29. <u>SCMA</u> advised that as clearly set out in the NPCSC Decision in 2007, the election of all Members of LegCo by universal suffrage might be implemented only after CE was selected by universal suffrage. Given that

the selection of CE by universal suffrage could be implemented in 2017 as provided for in the Decision in 2007, election of all Members by universal suffrage could only be implemented in 2020 at the earliest.

Other issues

- 30. Ms CHAN Yuen-han considered that more opportunities should be provided to young people to express their views on electoral reform. She invited views from deputations on whether the current Administration's publicity activities on electoral reform targeted at young people were sufficient and effective. Mr HUI Hoi-tik considered that the Administration should reach out to young people through more innovative channels to encourage them to express their views on the electoral reform. Mr Matthew SIN considered that the Government could not attract young people to discuss electoral reform simply by uploading the relevant official documents onto the Government website. He suggested that the Government should reach out to young people more proactively to engage them in the discussion.
- 31. <u>Dr Priscilla LEUNG</u> considered that the Administration should enhance publicity of BL, particularly BL 26, 45 and 68, and make known its stance on proposals which might not be consistent with BL.
- 32. <u>SCMA</u> agreed to the views that innovative publicity initiatives should be adopted in promoting Government policies, including this consultation exercise on the electoral reform. He said that the Administration would consider stepping up its effort to reach out to the young people through new media platforms to gauge their views on electoral reform. He welcomed suggestions from the public in this regard.
- 33. Regarding some deputations' suggestion of implementing compulsory voting, <u>SCMA</u> said the Administration noted that some jurisdictions had adopted compulsory voting and might conduct research study in this area. He noted that the Panel had also considered the implementation of automatic voter registration to improve the voter turnout rate and the low registration rate of young people. The Administration would consider such views by making reference to the relevant experience of other jurisdictions. <u>SCMA</u> invited deputations which had suggestions on the polling arrangements of the future CE election by universal suffrage to put forward their suggestions in writing to the Administration for further consideration.

II. Any other business

34. There being no other business, the meeting ended at 7:10 pm.

Council Business Division 2 <u>Legislative Council Secretariat</u> 25 April 2014

Panel on Constitutional Affairs

Consultation Document on Methods for Selecting the Chief Executive in 2017 and for Forming the Legislative Council in 2016

Special meeting on 11 January 2014

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
Sessio	n One	
1.*	Mr LAM Siu-pan	 CE candidates should be nominated through "civic nomination" to achieve genuine universal suffrage and there should be no "screening" of candidates by the Nominating Committee ("NC"). The Consultation Document is heavily influenced by the Central Government officials and has set many restrictions on the implementation of universal suffrage which are not the legal requirements of the Basic Law ("BL").
2.	Hong Kong Professional Teachers' Union	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(01)]
3.	Mr KWOK Chung- man	Presentation of views on meeting arrangements. A submission received [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(02)]
4.	Civic Party	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)772/13-14(01)].
5.*	Justice and Peace Commission of the Hong Kong Catholic Diocese	 "Civic nomination" which involves participation of the general public is the most democratic way of nominating CE candidates. The members of NC should be elected by registered voters of Hong Kong to enhance its representativeness. Functional Constituencies ("FC") seats of LegCo should be abolished by 2020 and only one-third of the existing FC seats should be retained in 2016. The split voting system should also be abolished by 2016.
6.*	Civil Human Rights Front	 CE candidates should be nominated through "civic nomination" and NC should not refuse to endorse the nominees. A low nomination threshold which requires endorsement by a certain number of members of the public should be adopted. The split voting system and all FC seats should be abolished. The Consultation Document has pre-set the framework on the implementation of universal suffrage and disregards the aspiration of the public to achieve genuine universal suffrage.

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
7.	Mr LEUNG Chi- ming	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)628/13-14(05)]
8.*	協助飯團入閘大聯盟	• The requirements of BL which do not comply with the international standard of universal suffrage should not be adopted as parameters for the implementation of universal suffrage in Hong Kong and a referendum should be conducted to achieve universal suffrage in Hong Kong.
9.*	Hong Kong Federation of Students	 CE candidates should be nominated through "civic nomination". The existing four sectors of the Election Committee ("EC") to which NC will make reference do not comply with the principles of universal and equal suffrage and may cause governance crisis. The Consultation Document has set too many restrictions on the implementation of universal suffrage in Hong Kong.
10.*	Students' Union of Hong Kong University of Science and Technology	 Any "screening" in the nomination procedures for the CE election is objected. The FC system should be abolished. The Consultation Document is heavily influenced by the Central Government officials and has set many restrictions on the implementation of universal suffrage in Hong Kong which are not the legal requirements of BL.
11.*	Shue Yan SUC	 The nomination of CE candidates by NC cannot fulfill principles of democracy as NC is expected to be dominated by the rich and the privileged. The "civic nomination" system should be adopted instead as it could truly meet the requirement of "broadly representative". The Consultation Document is heavily influenced by the Central Government officials and has pre-set the framework on the implementation of universal suffrage in Hong Kong.
12.	Mr Francis CHAN	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(03)]
13.*	Mr TAM Kwok-sun	• The Government has formed a pre-conceived position on the implementation of universal suffrage, and has already set in the Consultation Document many restrictions on the implementation of universal suffrage, such as that CE candidates have to "love the country and Hong Kong".
14.*	Mr NG Su-san	• A mechanism for re-election of CE should be put in place for handling the situation that the Central People's Government ("CPG") refuses to appoint the elected CE candidate, if such situation arises.

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
		• Any proposals on the implementation of universal suffrage should take into consideration the political status of Hong Kong under the principle of "one-country, two systems" and balance the views of the Central Authorities and the public of Hong Kong.
Session	i Two	
15.*	Mr WONG Yuk-ming	• The implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election and the LegCo election should be in conformity with BL and the Decision of the Standing Committee of the National People's Congress ("NPCSC") on issues relating to the two electoral methods in 2012 and on issues relating to universal suffrage in 2007 ("the 2007 NPCSC Decision").
16.*	Youthinfinity	• The community should strive to forge a consensus on the implementation of universal suffrage in Hong Kong and discussion of the future constitutional development should be pragmatic and rational.
17.*	The Association of Hong Kong Health Care Professionals	• Universal suffrage for the CE election should be implemented in accordance with the legal framework of BL and the relevant Decisions of NPCSC.
		CE candidates should be nominated by NC and a subsector for women should be added to NC to enhance its representativeness. "Civic nomination" should not be adopted.
18.*	Hong Kong Association for Democracy and People's Livelihood	 The "three-track" nomination proposal is fully supported as it can ensure that the elected CE has sufficient public acceptance. The Consultation Document has set many restrictions on the implementation of universal suffrage in Hong Kong.
19.*	Dr Benjamin LAU Shun-tung	The foundation of constitutional development has been laid in BL. Both the views of the Central Authorities and the Hong Kong community should be taken into account in implementing universal suffrage for the CE election.
20.	Mr CHAN Shui-on	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(04)]
21.	Mr CHAN Chee- chuen	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)641/13-14(01)]
22.*	Sham Shui Po Residents Association	The implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should be implemented on a gradual and orderly basis and in accordance with BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision. The size and composition of NC should make reference to the existing.
		The size and composition of NC should make reference to the existing EC to balance the interests of different sectors of the community.

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
		• A candidate must obtain more than half of the total number of valid votes of NC in order to be elected. In case no candidate is returned after the first round of polling, only the two candidates obtaining the highest number of votes can enter into the second round polling.
23.*	Hong Kong Ching Fai Association Limited	 Any proposals on universal suffrage for the CE election should conform with BL. The size and the composition of NC should make reference to the existing EC to balance the interests of different sectors of the community.
24.*	Mr Jonathan FONG	The number of CE candidates should be two to three and should not exceed four as it will be difficult for the public to make a choice if there are too many candidates.
25.*	Mr PANG Yuen- ching	CE is to be appointed by CPG, and a person who acts against the Central Authorities should not be elected as the CE of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region ("HKSAR").
26.*	Mr YIP Man-chung	• The universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should be implemented in accordance with BL 45 and the 2007 NPCSC Decision. Any proposals that do not comply with BL, such as the "three-track" nomination proposal, are impractical and not supported.
27.*	Mr LIN Chun-ming	• The implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should comply with BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision.
28.*	Mr CHAN Hiu-chun	 The appointment of CE by CPG is a substantive power. The suggestion that NC has to endorse the CE candidates nominated through "civic nomination" or "party nomination" will undermine the power of NC and contravene the requirement of BL. The electorate base of FCs should be expanded to enhance their representativeness.
29.*	Mr KWAN Cheuk- kui	As the method for selecting CE by universal suffrage is clearly stipulated in BL 45, the proposals of nominating CE candidates through "civic nomination" or "party nomination" are not in compliance with BL.
30.*	Mr HOU Chun-kau	The selection of CE by universal suffrage upon nomination by a broadly representative NC as stipulated in BL is supported.
31.*	Property Agencies Association	The number of members of NC should be increased from 1 200 to 2 400 or above. New subsectors (e.g. real estate agents) should be added to NC to enhance its representativeness.

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
		• The implementation of universal suffrage for LegCo election is supported but the FC system should be retained to balance the interests of different sectors of the community.
		The constitutional development of Hong Kong should be taken forward in accordance with the principle of gradual and orderly progress.
32.*	Mr YUEN Chung- man	The universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should be implemented in accordance with BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision.
		CE candidates should be nominated by NC in accordance with BL. The nomination of CE candidates through "civic nomination" or "party nomination" which bypasses NC contravenes BL.
		The composition of EC should be adopted for forming NC.
		The universal suffrage for the LegCo election should be implemented in accordance with BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision.
33.*	Mid-Levels Community Development Association	• To resolve conflicts in the society, the Government should consider introducing compulsory voting and making the polling day a statutory holiday to improve the voter turnout rate and encourage electors to express their views on public issues.
Session		
34.*	Kowloon Federation of Associations	• Any proposals on the implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should take into consideration the actual situation of Hong Kong and be conducive to the maintenance of the prosperity and stability of Hong Kong.
		• The Government should step up publicity and explain to the public that the implementation of universal suffrage has to be taken forward within the legal framework of BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision.
35.*	Democratic Alliance for the Betterment and Progress of Hong Kong	• The composition of NC should make reference to the existing four sectors of EC. The existing distribution of seats among the four sectors should be maintained while the composition of the 38 subsectors can be appropriately adjusted.
		• Composition of NC should be modeled on EC, and corporate votes should be replaced by executive votes in subsectors' election to enlarge the electorate base of NC.
		• There should be at least three candidates for the CE election to allow competition in the election. One must obtain the majority support of NC members in order to secure nomination.
36.	Institute of Accountants Exchange	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(04)]

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
37.	Accounting Development Foundation Limited	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(05)]
38.*	Mr SIN Chi-ming	• The implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should be strictly in accordance with BL 45. Any other proposals not in compliance with BL are objected.
39.*	Mr WU Kam-chau	The universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should be implemented within the framework of BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision. CE candidates should be nominated by a broadly representative NC as stipulated in BL.
40.*	Mr HUI Hoi-tik	• The implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should be strictly in accordance with BL 45 and the 2007 NPCSC Decision.
41.*	Mr Matthew SIN	The universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should be implemented within the framework of BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision. The composition of NC should make reference to EC to allow participation of different sectors of the community.
		• NC should nominate three to four CE candidates to allow competition in the election. Too many candidates may complicate the electoral procedures, waste public money and create division in the society.
42.*	Mr LEE Kwok-wan	• The implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 is the common aspiration of the Central Authorities, the HKSAR Government and the Hong Kong general public. The discussion on how universal suffrage can be attained should be based on the legal requirement of BL.
43.	Mr Frank PAK	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(07)]
44.*	Mr Johnny YU	• The implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should conform with BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision.
		• NC should be formed with reference to EC to ensure balanced participation of all sectors of the community and accord with the principle of gradual and orderly process.
45.*	The Y. Elites Association	• Any proposals on the implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should be in conformity with BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision.
46.	All-China Women's Federation Hong Kong Delegates Association	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(07)]

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
47.*	Lok Fu Residents' Affairs Association	• The implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should be in conformity with BL.
48.*	King Fu District Residents' Advancement Association	 The universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should be implemented in accordance with BL and the principle of gradual and orderly progress. The nomination of CE candidates cannot bypass NC.
49.*	Dr Stephen LI Chun- yue	• As the leader of Hong Kong, CE shall be a person of high caliber and integrity and with high public acceptance. The selection of CE by universal suffrage upon nomination by NC can ensure that a suitable leader is chosen.
50.	HK Political Economic and Cultural Society	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)641/13-14(02)]
51.	Mr CHAN Kuen- hong	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)641/13-14(03)]
Session	Four	
52.	Service Industry General Union	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)641/13-14(04)]
53.*	Internet Professional Association	• The implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should conform with BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision.
		• The number of members of NC should be increased to 1 800 or above and elected DC members should be added to NC to enhance the representativeness of NC.
		• To be a nominated candidate, one must first obtain the support of one-tenth of the total membership of NC.
		• The existing requirement that CE should not have any political affiliation should be reviewed to allow members of different political parties to run for the election.
		• The Government will have to abide by the law in taking forward the implementation of universal suffrage for the LegCo election and it should also comply with the principle of balanced participation.
		• The electorate base of FCs seats should be enlarged. To ensure equal right to vote and equal right to stand for election, the criteria for the registration of electors for various FCs should be reviewed to ensure consistency and fairness.

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
54.*	The Youth Association of Hong Kong Central and Western District	 CE candidates should be nominated by NC in a form of "organizational nomination" instead of nominated by individual NC members. To enhance the democratic element of NC, consideration should be given to i) returning a certain proportion of NC members through "one-person-one-vote" by all registered voters; or ii) adding elected DC members to NC. The Government should consider introducing compulsory voting to encourage electors to express their views on public issues to resolve conflicts in the society.
55.	China Universities Alumni (HK) Association	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)628/13-14(08)]
56.	Love China Hong Kong Alliance of Youth Cultural Societies	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper Nos. CB(2)628/13-14(09) & CB(2)742/13-14(09)]
57.*	The Hong Kong Student Development Committee	• The constitutional development of Hong Kong should be taken forward in accordance with the principle of gradual and orderly progress and conform with BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision.
58.*	Mr YIM Chi-fung	The Hong Kong community should adopt an accommodating approach to forge consensus for the implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election under the framework of BL.
59.	Hong Kong Information Technology Joint Council	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)628/13-14(10)]
60.*	Miss Vivian SHEK	• CE candidates should be nominated through "civic nomination" as different political parties can be allowed to field candidates for the CE election if the required number of nominations from electors is obtained under this proposal.
61.*	Mr TEO Kong-lap	 The implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should conform with BL and the NPCSC Decision. The number of members of NC can be appropriately increased. There should be three to four candidates nominated by NC.
62.*	C.B.N. Cares	• The Government has formed a pre-conceived view on the implementation of universal suffrage before consulting the public. The Consultation Document is heavily influenced by the Central

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
		Government officials and has pre-set the framework on the implementation of universal suffrage, such as adding the element of "organisational nomination" by NC.
63.*	Gamer Power	The composition of NC lacks representation of the general public. "Civic nomination" should be adopted for nominating CE candidates. The composition of NC lacks representation of the general public.
64.*	Civic Passion	CE candidates should be nominated through "civic nomination" to achieve genuine universal suffrage.
		• The requirement of "organizational nomination" by NC contained in the Consultation Document is not stipulated in BL, indicating that universal suffrage will not be implemented in accordance with the law as claimed by the Government.
65.*	Malade Alliance for the Betterment and Progress of Hong Kong	• The requirement of "organizational nomination" by NC contained in the Consultation Document is not stipulated in BL, indicating that universal suffrage will not be implemented in accordance with law as claimed by the Government.
66.*	Girl's Hong Kong Caring Hotline	CE candidates should be nominated by the general public. Any "screening" in the nomination procedures for the CE election is objected.
67.*	Mr WONG Chiu-wa	• The community should adopt an accommodating and rational approach to forge consensus for the implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 under a lawful framework.
		• The implementation of universal suffrage for LegCo election is supported.
68.	League in Defense of HK Freedoms	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(01)]
69.*	Students' Union of the University of Hong Kong	CE candidates should be nominated by political parties or by a NC with members elected through "one-person-one-vote" of the general public and each vote should carry the same weight.
70.*	Mr FU Ka-ho	• The constitutional development of Hong Kong should not be taken forward in accordance with BL which only represents the interests of the Central Authorities and does not reflect the views of Hong Kong people. The CE of HKSAR shall be accountable to Hong Kong people.
71.	The Association of Experts for Modernization Ltd	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)628/13-14(11)]
72.*	Hong Kong Strategy	The constitutional development of Hong Kong should be taken forward in accordance with BL and the NPCSC Decision.

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
Session	n Five	
73.	Cross-Strait Peaceful Development Federation	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)641/13-14(05)]
74.*	Government Architectural Services Department Employees Association	 The implementation of universal suffrage should be in compliance with BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision. The composition of NC should make reference to the existing EC and the number of members of NC should be increased to 1 600. The number of CE candidates should not exceed four. Preferential elimination system should be adopted for electing CE. A candidate must obtain more than half of the valid votes of NC to be elected as CE.
75.*	Mr Matthew CHUNG Ho-ming	 The four sectors of EC should be abolished when forming NC in 2017. The 1 200 NC members should be elected by all eligible voters of Hong Kong and the seats should be distributed in proportion to the number of voters of the 18 districts. The nomination threshold of CE candidates should be relaxed to one-tenth of the total membership of NC.
76.*	Mr TSANG Yiu-hin	The implementation of universal suffrage should comply with BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision.
77.	Hong Kong Federation of Guangxi Clansmen Association Limited	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(12)]
78.	Federation of HK Guangxi Community Organization Ltd	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(13)]
79.	Ching Chung Taoist Association of Hong Kong Ltd	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(14)]
80.	Young DAB	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(15)]
81.	Mr KWONG Sing-yu	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(16)]
82.	Mr WONG Chi-kin	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(17)]
83.	Mr YAN Kin-yi, Raphael	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(18)]

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
84.	Mr CHAN Kwong- shik	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(19)]
85.	Mr CHAN King-wai	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(20)]
86.	Mr LEE Ching-hang	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(21)]
87.*	Mr LEUNG Ip-chun	 The implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should conform with BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision. The one-eighth nomination threshold adopted in the last CE election should be maintained to allow competition in the CE election.
88.	Hong Kong New Territories Commercial & Industrial General Association Limited (Yuen Long Branch)	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)641/13-14(06)]
89.	Mr LOUIE Wah-yuck	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(23)]
90.	Mr LAM Shun-kit	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)628/13-14(12)]
91.*	Defend Hong Kong Campaign	 The implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 is supported. The Government should promote the need to implement universal suffrage in accordance with law through publicity.
92.	Hong Kong CPPCC (Provincial) Members Association Ltd.	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)641/13-14(08)]
93.*	Hong Kong Youth Development Society	 The implementation of the universal suffrage of the CE election in 2017 should comply with BL. The "three-track" nomination proposal is not supported as it undermines the nomination power of NC as stipulated in BL. The formation of NC should make reference to the existing EC. CE candidates should be nominated by NC in a form of "organization nomination", and not nominated by individual NC members.
94.*	Mr LEUNG Wah	• The implementation of universal suffrage of the CE election in 2017 should conform with BL. CE candidates should be nominated by NC, and not through "civic nomination" or "party nomination".

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
		• The number of NC members should be increased to 2 400 or above. Corporate votes should be abolished in subsectors' election.
95.*	Mr CHIN Chi-yung	• The implementation of the universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should comply with the principle of gradual and orderly progress and in conformity with BL.
96.	Mr LAI Wing-ming	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(25)]
Session	ı Six	
97.*	Neighbourhood and Worker's Service Centre	The "three-track" nomination proposal which comprises the element of "civic nomination" is supported to ensure equal nomination right. NC should endorse the nomination of CE candidates if they can obtain supprot of 1% of all registered voters in Hong Kong.
		• FC seats and the split voting system should be abolished in the 2016 LegCo election. All LegCo Members should be elected by universal suffrage.
98.*	Kwai Chung Community Work Union	 Every citizen should have to right to nominate CE candidates. There should not be any "screening" of CE candidates by NC. FC seats should be abolished in the 2016 LegCo election.
99.*	Kwai Chung Estate Elderly Rights Concern Group	The elements of "civic nomination", "civil voting" and "civil disobedience" should be included in the election method for selecting CE.
100.*	Kwai Chung Estate Grassroots Political Concern Group	CE candidates should be nominated through "civic nomination" to ensure that there is universal and equal right of nomination of every citizen and no "screening" of CE candidates by NC.
		• The split voting system and FC seats should be abolished in the 2016 LegCo election.
101.*	Kwai Chung Estate Labour Rights Concern Group	• Every voter should have the rights to nominate, to stand for election and to vote. CE candidates should be nominated by registered voters, and not by NC to ensure that the elected CE will be accountable to the general public.
		• FC seats should be abolished in the 2016 LegCo election.
102.*	Kwai Fong Worker Union	Any proposals on the nomination of CE should include the element of public participation. There should not be any "screening" of CE candidates in the nomination procedures.
		The split voting system and FC seats of LegCo should be abolished.

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
103.*	Eastern District Worker Union	 CE candidates should be nominated by members of the public through "civic nomination" to implement universal and equal suffrage. The Consultation Document is heavily influenced by the Central
		Government officials and has pre-set the framework on the implementation of universal suffrage in Hong Kong.
104.	Mr AU YEUNG Kwong-wing	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(26)]
105.	Mr LAM Mau-fung	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(27)]
106.	Mr LAI Tak-keung	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(28)]
107.	Hong Kong Union of Chinese Workers in Western Style Employment	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(29)]
108.*	Miss CHEUNG Yuet- yung	CE candidates should be nominated by the public to implement genuine universal suffrage.
109.	Mr KAN Chi-chung	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(30)]
110.	The Association of Hong Kong Professionals	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)628/13-14(14)]
111.	China Universities Alumni (HK) Association - Engineer Division	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)641/13-14(09)]
112.	The Nam An (Hong Kong) Association Ltd.	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)641/13-14(10)]
113.*	Savantas	• To enhance the representativeness of the future NC, the electorate base of certain subsectors of the existing EC (e.g. Financial Services) should be reviewed and enlarged to reflect the economic scale of these industries.
		• A transparent and credible mechanism should be put in place to assess the economic scale of new subsectors of NC based on their history and contribution to the local economy to ensure balanced participation of different sectors.

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
114.*	Mr Marcus TSE Tsz- kei Member of Eastern District (Tai Koo Shing East)	• The public should be provided with the information on the merits and voting procedures of different polling methods (e.g. one or two rounds of polling, preferential elimination system or instant runoff system) for electing CE by universal suffrage to facilitate discussion on the issues.
115.*	Mr WONG Cheuk- kin Member of Yuen Long District (Chung Pak)	The universal suffrage for the CE election should be implemented in accordance with the legal framework of BL and taking into account the constitutional powers of the Central Authorities on HKSAR.
116.	Ms Alice WONG Man-hing	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(31)]
117.*	Mr Joey LEE Man- lung Member of Eastern District (Tin Hau)	• There is no necessary co-relation between the number of members of NC and its representativeness. The composition and the electorate base of NC can be adjusted and enlarged to enhance its representativeness and reflect the economic structure and societal change.
Session	Seven	
118.	Virtue Dynamics	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(32)]
119.	Hong Kong China Chamber of Commerce	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(33)]
120.	New Home Association	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)628/13-14(15)]
121.*	Mr Tony LEUNG Ka-tung	• The Hong Kong community should adopt an accommodating and rational approach to forge consensus for the implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 and forming of LegCo in 2016 in accordance with BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision.
122.*	Sun Yat-Sen University United Alumni Association (Hong Kong)	 The power to nominate CE candidates shall only be vested in the future NC as stipulated by BL. To enhance the representativeness of NC, consideration should be given to increasing the number of members of NC and adding new subsectors or their representatives (e.g. the youth, representatives from business and educational fields) to the relevant sectors of NC.
123.	Mr Jeffrey PONG Chiu-fai Member of Wan Chai District Council	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)628/13-14(16)]

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
124.*	Ms KWOK Yee-wah	 The methods for selecting CE in 2017 and for forming LegCo in 2016 should be discussed within the framework of BL and the relevant Decisions of NPCSC. FC seats should be retained to represent the views of different professional sectors.
125.	Mr TSOI Hing-fa	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)628/13-14(17)]
126.*	Hong Kong Federation of Hainan Community Organisations Limited	 The community should adopt a rational approach to forge consensus for the implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 in compliance with BL. Two to five candidates should be nominated for the 2017 CE election.
127.	Ms LEE LUK Kwan- yee	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(34)]
128.	Central and Western Development Concern Association	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(35)]
129.	C&W Mid-levels Owners' Association	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(36)]
130.*	HK Public Light Bus Owner & Driver Association	• The community should adopt an accommodating approach to forge consensus for the constitutional development of Hong Kong. The electorate base of the future NC should be enlarged to include public light bus companies as electors in the transport subsector to represent the views of the industry.
131.*	Hong Kong All Youth Alliance	 The existing four sectors in EC should be retained when forming the future NC while consideration should be given to expanding their electorate bases and adjusting the composition of the subsectors to enhance the representativeness of NC. The number of candidates for the 2017 CE election is suggested to be two to five. The abolition of all FC seats of LegCo is objected but the existing electorate base of FC seats should be reviewed.
132.*	Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations Limited	The Hong Kong community should adopt an accommodating approach to forge consensus for the implementation of universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 and forming of LegCo in 2016 in accordance with BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision.

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
133.	Hong Kong United Youth Association Ltd	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(38)]
134.*	Mr Eric YEUNG	 The universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should be implemented in accordance with BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision. Any proposals that undermine the substantive power of NC to nominate candidates are objected. The nominated CE candidates should "love the country and Hong Kong". To enhance the representativeness of the future NC, consideration should be given to i) increasing the number of members of NC from
		1 200 to 1 800; and ii) adding new subsectors (e.g. small and medium size enterprises, women and youth) to the relevant sectors of NC.
135.*	Ms Jaclyn NGAN	• The universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should be implemented in accordance with the principle of gradual and orderly progress and having regard to the actual situation of Hong Kong.
		• CE should "love the country and Hong Kong" and shall be accountable to the Central Authorities and the Hong Kong people. The number of CE candidates is suggested to be three to four to allow competition in the CE election.
136.*	Mr Stanley CHOI	The power of nominating CE candidates should be vested in the future NC. To allow competition, NC should nominate at least three candidates to run in the CE election.
		• The CPG should not decline to appoint the elected candidate to uphold the principle of "Hong Kong people ruling Hong Kong". The methods for selecting CE should be reviewed after two to three CE elections by universal suffrage have been held.
137.*	Wanchai Community Association	The universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should be implemented in accordance with BL and the 2007 NPCSC Decision.
138.*	Mr Barry WONG	• The electorate base of the social welfare subsector of the future NC in the 2017 CE selection and the social welfare FC in the 2016 LegCo election should be enlarged as far as possible to cover more working personnel in the field (e.g. local domestic helpers, health workers and welfare workers).
139.	Institute of Social Service Development	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)641/13-14(11)]
140.	Mr CHAN Chit-kwai, BBS, JP Member of Central and Western District Council	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(39)]

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
141.	Mr Fanko WAN Cho- keung	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)641/13-14(12)]
Session		
142.	Mr Jonathan HO Kaiming Member of Kwun Tong District Council	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(40)]
143.*	Mr Lemon FOK	 The members of the future NC should be selected randomly from the general public. To become a CE candidate, one has to obtain 100 nominations in NC. All FCs seats of LegCo should be abolished in one go. The ultimate goal is to return all LegCo members through the "one-person-one-vote" method.
144.*	Livelihood Concern Group	Presentation of views on the definition of "love the country and Hong Kong", the nomination procedures of CE candidates, and the composition of the four sectors of NC.
145.*	Labour Party	 There should not be any "screening" of CE candidates for the 2017 CE election. Candidates should be nominated through "civic nomination" or "party nomination" to genuinely reflect the views of the general public. All FCs seats of LegCo should be abolished as soon as possible.
146.*	Mr Louis CHENG	CE candidates must be nominated through "civic nomination" to reflect the views of the general public and to avoid any screening of candidates by the Central Authorities.
147.	New Power for Student Right	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(41)]
148.*	64.25 Group	The implementation of universal suffrage without any screening of CE candidates is supported.
149.*	Hong Kong Electrical & Engineering Professional Employees Association	 CE candidates should be nominated by NC, and the number of members of NC should be increased on a gradual basis. The existing requirement that CE should not have any political affiliation should be retained.
150.	Mr LAM Sik-kin	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)628/13-14(19)]

No.	Deputation/ individual	Views
151.*	League of Social Democrats	 The "three-track" nomination proposal which comprises the element of "civic nomination" is supported. Under the "civic nomination" system, one can become a CE candidate if he/she can obtain nominations of 1% of all registered voters in Hong Kong. All FCs seats of LegCo should be abolished immediately.
152.*	Hong Kong Youth Development Council	 The membership of NC should be enlarged to enhance participation of different political parties. The "three-track" nomination proposal is acceptable but candidates nominated through "civic nomination" or "party nomination" should be further considered and assessed by NC.
153.*	Wofoo Infinity Network	 CE candidates should be nominated by NC under the legal framework of BL. Consideration can be given to increasing the members of NC to include more people from different backgrounds and political parties to enhance its representatives. It is a legitimate requirement that CE has to "love the country and Hong Kong".
154.*	Wofoo Youth Network	 The proposals of civic nomination and nomination by political parties are objected as they bypass the nomination procedures of NC. The membership and the electorate base of NC should be enlarged and one-fourth of its members should be elected through "one-person-one-vote" by voters.
155.*	Youth Ambassador Union of the Basic Law	 Universal suffrage for the CE election in 2017 should be implemented in accordance with BL, and CE candidates should be nominated by NC. "Civic nomination" which contravenes the requirement of BL is objected.
156.*	Popular Nominations Struggle Committee	CE candidates should be nominated through "civic nomination", which has been put into practice in various geographical constituency direct elections.
157.*	Ms Cherry LEE Kashun	The nomination of CE candidates through "civic nomination" does not contravene BL and is strongly supported. Any screening of candidates by NC is objected.
158.	Hong Kong Registered Chinese Medicine Practitioners Association Ltd	Presentation of views as detailed in the submission [LC Paper No. CB(2)742/13-14(42)]

No.	Deputation/	Views
	individual	
159.	* Miss WONG Man- ching	• "Civic nomination" is supported as it allows participation of the general public in the nomination process of CE candidates and prevents "screening".

^{*} No submissions provided for this meeting.

Council Business Division 2 <u>Legislative Council Secretariat</u> 25 April 2014